
CENTRE COUNTY METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (CCMPO) 
Coordinating Committee 

2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 4 
State College, PA 16801 

Phone: (814) 231-3077 Fax: (814) 231-3083 Website: www.crcog.net/ccmpo 
 

Hybrid Meeting 
Wednesday, September 17, 2025 

 

GENERAL MEETING INFORMATION 

RSVP 

To ensure an overall quorum of members, please let us know how you intend to 
participate: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/1QGQ32drRnyitIxPAyLrwg  
 

Remote 
Participants 

To attend via Zoom: 
 https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/1QGQ32drRnyitIxPAyLrwg  
To attend by phone: +1 301 715 8592 | Meeting ID:  880 1497 5149 

In-Person 
Participants 

COG Building – General Forum Room – First Floor  
2643 Gateway Drive, State College PA 16801 

Meeting Contact: Gabby Lauder | email: glauder@crcog.net | 814-231-3050 

 
• The chat feature for this meeting will be disabled. A recording of the meeting will be made available on 

the COG website upon its conclusion. 
 

• We ask that non-voting participants that are attending remotely remain muted with their video 
turned off unless recognized to speak. To reduce audio interference, please remain off of 
speakerphone during the meeting. 

 
• VOTING PROCEDURES: Members will provide their vote by voice. Clarification will be sought by 

the Chair if the vote is unclear. For additional information on Voting Procedures, please click 
HERE. 

 
• PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES: Members of the public may comment on any items not already 

on the agenda (five minutes per person). Comments relating to specific items on the agenda 
should be deferred until that point in the meeting. For additional information on public meeting 
guidelines, please click HERE. 
 

• To access agendas and minutes of previously held meetings, and to learn more about the CCMPO 
Coordinating Committee on our website, please click HERE.  

 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/1QGQ32drRnyitIxPAyLrwg
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/1QGQ32drRnyitIxPAyLrwg
mailto:glauder@crcog.net
https://www.crcog.net/index.asp?SEC=E45D3748-C2F7-4EAF-8F3E-AB63B94C36AE
https://www.crcog.net/index.asp?SEC=887A22E4-181A-49A5-997F-B836A6E6114C
https://www.crcog.net/index.asp?SEC=06B8F54D-3DAE-4EED-89C4-130AB86F6D91


CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 2 of 18 

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) 
Coordinating Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, September 17, 2025 

6:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Safety Moment: Rail Safety Week September 15 to 21, 2025 

 
3. Public Comments: For items not on the agenda.  
 
4. New Agenda Items: Members may request that an additional item(s) be added to the agenda. 

If approved by a majority vote of members present, the proposed item(s) will be placed on the 
agenda at a time determined by the Chair. 

 
5. Consent Agenda:   

a. Approval of Minutes: June 24, 2025 Coordinating Committee Meeting 
 
6. State College Area Connector (SCAC) Project: 

Status Report 
PennDOT Response Letter to Potter Township 

  No action required 
 
7. Fiscal Year (FY) Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Revisions: 

Highway Safety Improvement Program 
 Action:  Approve revisions to the 2025-2028 Centre County TIP 

 
8. Public Comment Period Summary For: 

2025 Centre County Air Quality Conformity Determination Report (Revised July 2025) 
Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) 2055 

Action:  Approve responses to comments in the Public Comment Period Summary for the 
2025 Air Quality Conformity Analysis Report and the 2055 LRTP 

 
9. 2024 Centre County Air Quality Conformity Determination Report:  

Conformity Determination Report and Air Quality Conformity Resolution 
  Action: Approve the Air Quality Conformity Report  
  Action: Approve the Air Quality Resolution 
  
10. Long Range Transportation Plan Update: 

Public Comment Period Summary  
Final Draft LRTP  

  Action:  Approve the adoption of the 2055 LRTP 
 
 
 

https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-BAC6A6336348%7D/uploads/CCMPO_LRTP_Draft_9-4-2025-reduced(1).pdf


CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 3 of 18 
11. Review of Potential TSMO Projects: 

Review of funding opportunity and project development process 
  Action:  Provide comments or questions to MPO staff  
 
12. CCMPO Draft Calendar Year (CY) 2026 Budget: 

Draft Budget 
  Action:  Provide comments to MPO staff  
 
13. CCMPO Strategic Plan: 

Review progress in implementation of MPO Strategic Plan  
Action:  Provide comments to MPO staff and consider approving a joint meeting in 
November with the Technical and Projects Committees. 

        
14. Member Reports: 

Reports from members about a significant item(s) of interest 
  No action required 
 
15. Announcements 
  
16. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

   
 

CENTRE COUNTY METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 

COORDINATING COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting Minutes  

Tuesday, June 24, 2025, 6:00 p.m. 

Mr. Bernier called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Roll call was taken by Ms. Mann.  

Members Present:  
Eric Bernier    College Township 
Amber Concepcion   Centre County Board of Commissioners 
Lisa Strickland    Ferguson Township 
Frank Harden    Harris Township  
Matt Herndon    State College Borough  
Keith Reese     Upper Bald Eagle Valley Planning Region  
Eric Rusnak    Moshannon Valley Planning Region  
Dick Decker     Penns Valley Planning Region 
William Burnett    Centre Regional Planning Commission (CRPC) 
Nate Walker    PennDOT Central Office 
Doug Johnson   Nittany Valley Planning Region 
Eric Murnyack   PennDOT District 2-0 

 
Others Present:  
Pam Adams     Centre Regional Planning Agency (CRPA) 
Jim Saylor     CRPA  
Greg Kausch    CRPA 
Anne Messner    CRPA 
Marcella Hoffman   CRPA  
Reagan Mann    CRPA 
Brian Funkhouser   Michael Baker International 
Kevin James    Michael Baker International 
Frank Hampton   PennDOT Central Office 
Mark Schultz    PennDOT District 2-0 
Cindy Kunes    Congressman Glenn Thompson’s Office 
David Gunsallus   Larson Design Group 
Gene Porochniak  Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

1. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS: (00:03:30) 

Mr. Bernier announced Pam Adams as the new and incoming Agency Director for the Centre Region 
Planning Agency (CRPA), having assumed the role effective May 16th upon the departure of Mike 
Tylka.  



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

Ms. Adams is also the Technical Committee representative for the Centre Region Planning 
Commission (CRPC). 

2. SAFETY MOMENT: SUMMER DRIVING TIPS: (00:06:02) 

Ms. Messner brought attention to summer heat in vehicles, along with the importance of 
implementing a packing list for your car during the summer months, and asked the Committee to 
review the tips provided. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS: (00:06:37) 

There were no comments from the public. 

4. NEW AGENDA ITEMS: (00:07:10) 

No new agenda items were requested. 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: (00:07:27) 
a. Approval of Minutes – April 22, 2025, Coordinating Committee 

Motion was made by Mr. Decker, seconded by Mr. Reese to approve the consent agenda as 
presented. The motion carried 12 – 0.  

6. STATE COLLEGE AREA CONNECTOR (SCAC) PROJECT UPDATE: (00:08:01) 

Mr. James, representing PennDOT District 2-0, presented the Committee with an update on the 
SCAC project. The second scoping public meeting was held on May 8th, 2025, in Boalsburg at the 
Wyndam Garden Hotel. It was well attended, with more than 425 attendees. At the meeting, 
updates were shared about the three alternatives: the North, Central, and South Alternatives. 
There were flyover videos and 3D CAD models presented for attendees to interact with, which were 
well received and helped people to better visualize options. Prior to the May 8 public meeting, 
PennDOT announced its recommended preferred alternative, the Central Alternative, to move 
forward for further design. 

Feedback from the community was welcomed, as well as enhancement recommendations to the 
Central Alternative recommended option. It was requested that PennDOT follow up with property 
owners, business owners, and area leaders to share and gather more information. There will be a 
summary report for the public meeting, to include all comments received. Most of the questions 
received were regarding the right-of-way acquisition process. Currently, the project is at the stage 
of the environmental clearance process, where a record of decision is needed for the 
recommended preferred alternative before proceeding with any right-of-way acquisitions.  

Mr. James also reported that on Monday, June 16, 2025, the second consulting parties meeting was 
held at the Boalsburg Fire Hall to assess the project area’s cultural resources, and determine how 
the project would affect the historic properties and cultural resources throughout the area. 
Information was provided on the determination of effects of each alternative presented, and 
feedback was received from the Pennsylvania State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO). Next 
steps include holding another meeting to discuss the mitigation strategies for the effects that have 
been determined at this point. 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

The PennDOT team has continued to work on the draft Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) and 
will be ready for public comment at the end of 2025 or early 2026.  There will be a 30-day comment 
period, which will allow interested parties to provide comments on the draft EIS. A final EIS will be 
completed and submitted in summer of 2026, to obtain a record of decision from the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA), which would close out the environmental impact process.  

Last, the PennDOT team is working with the permitting agencies to begin the waterway permit 
process. There are continued conversations with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers and the 
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to start that process. There is a 
requirement for a federal decision on the permitting process within 90 days of a record of decision.     

There was discussion on the negative feedback provided by those impacted by this project, and 
what their potential options would be. It was stated that if this project did not move forward, needs 
would not be met and safety would be compromised. There is an option to do nothing and not 
move forward, but that would not meet the needs of all those who have coordinated these efforts 
over the more than three years of discussion. A question was asked regarding what to tell people if 
they ask about their options for this project impacting them directly. 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                    POWER OUTAGE 
*Power was lost during the meeting and recessed from 00:16:15 on the CNET recording or 6:14 pm 
in person. Power was restored at 00:16:26 on the CNET recording and 6:40 pm in person.* 

A quorum was reached between people in the room and via phone, as the meeting room 
technology and internet connectivity was lost during the power outage.  
 
Due to the power outage, Mr. Bernier stated that the non-action items will be moved to the end of 
the agenda and may be revisited at the end of the meeting, if time and daylight allows. 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

7. LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN (LRTP) 2055 UPDATE: (00:17:11) 

Ms. Messner provided the Committee with an update on the final draft LRTP 2055, which will be 
considered for adoption at the September Coordinating Committee meeting. Mr. Funkhouser, from 
Michael Baker International, reviewed the major items that have been added to the plan since it 
was last presented:  

• Goods movement detailed throughout Centre County 
• Most recent release of Freight Analysis Framework (FAF) data from FHWA 
• Revenue forecast provided from PennDOT District 2-0 and Central Office 
• Additional areas of attention:  

o Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 
o Connected and Automated Vehicles (CAV) 
o Park and ride facilities 
o Micro-mobility devices (electric scooters or electric bikes) 

• Air quality conformity report 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

FHWA requires documentation of the amount of revenue that the MPO could reasonably expect to 
receive over the life of the plan horizon, out to the year 2055. Last month, PennDOT released its 
financial guidance, which provides the amount of revenue the MPO could expect to receive through 
the 12-year program period. It is forecasted to be around $582 million over the life of the plan. Any 
revenue beyond the 12-year program period of 2036 is assumed to be flat to the year 2055, 
estimated at around $18.5 million each year, which is a conservative forecast due to the potential 
for new revenue that may be available from the motor license fund or the federal government.  

Another major element is the air quality conformity report, which is coordinated with the 
Interagency Consultation Group (ICG) to review projects that would be considered air quality 
significant. These include: the I-80/I-99 High Speed Interchange Project in Bellefonte, the State 
College Area Connector (SCAC), and the Park Avenue widening project. Most projects within the 
plan do not have a significant impact on air quality.  

Ms. Messner stated that the 30-day public comment period will begin June 30, and run through July 
31. The public open house will take place on July 22 from 3:00 pm to 4:30 pm, and from 6:00 pm to 
7:30 pm in the COG General Forum Room. After the comment period concludes, public comments 
will be reviewed, and the final draft plan will be presented to the Coordinating Committee for 
consideration of adoption at its September meeting.  

The Committee offered no comments for consideration. 

Motion was made by Mr. Reese, seconded by Commissioner Concepcion, to begin advertisement 
of the draft LRTP 2055 on June 30, 2025, for a 30-day public comment period. The motion carried 12 
- 0. 

There was a question on how or where to submit comments during the comment period. 
Ms. Messner clarified that in addition to the two open house meeting options, there will be an 
online form available to submit any comments within the 30-day window, and there are physical 
comment forms at each of the locations where the draft plan is on display.  Last, the public can 
contact the MPO office directly to share their comments. 

8. FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2025-2027 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP): (00:29:28) 

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) lists the work tasks to be completed by the CRPA, 
CATA, and the CCPCDO on behalf of the MPO. The 2025-2027 UPWP was adopted in November 
2024, and takes effect on July 1, 2025. As part of the development of the 2025-2027 UPWP, the 
CCMPO requested supplemental planning funds for Year 1 for the Benner Pike Corridor Study and 
the Rail Passenger Access Study. CCMPO staff were notified in May that both efforts have been 
funded, and that work on the efforts may mover forward after notice to proceed is received as part 
of a fully executed work order agreement. 

The MPO has an opportunity to submit additional projects for supplemental planning funds for Year 
2 of the UPWP. MPO staff propose to conduct a safety study on US-322 from Centre Street to 
Halfmoon Street in the Moshannon Valley Planning Region. This study seeks to address pedestrian 
and traffic safety concerns. The corridor has a high volume of passenger vehicle traffic, as well as 
heavy truck traffic. It also serves key community destination,s but lacks basic pedestrian 
infrastructure like sidewalks, crosswalks, and ADA ramps. The study will identify improvements to 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

enhance safety for all users. Ms. Hoffman noted that this project has a municipal match 
contribution from a municipality in the Moshannon Valley Region. 

The Centre Region COG budget meeting is July 17, so Mr. Saylor and Ms. Hoffman would like to 
discuss any objections to submit the US-322 Safety Study project in Moshannon Valley for Year 2 of 
the UPWP supplemental planning study request. 

The Committee did not offer any comments or questions for consideration. 

9. 2025-2028 CENTRE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (TIP) REVISIONS: 
(00:32:12) 

a. Highway Safety Improvement Program – $50,000 for US-322/Mount Nittany Expressway 
Surface Mount Delineators 
Mr. Saylor provided the Committee with a brief report on the proposed TIP revision. This 
amendment would allocate $50,000 from the regional safety line item that is not currently 
allocated to any particular project, to a project that will install roundabout surface mount 
delineators on US-322 at the eastern end of the Mount Nittany Expressway in Harris Township, 
at the merge point from four lanes to two lanes. The delineators would be placed in the center 
to reduce crossovers and head-on collisions. County maintenance forces will be utilized for 
installation to keep costs low, and to shorten the project timeline.  

There was discussion on whether rumble strips were considered, in addition to the surface 
mount delineators. The surface mount delineators were determined to be the best option for 
the budget and timeline of installation, and to assist in improving conditions prior to the 
completion of the SCAC. 

Motion was made by Mr. Harden, seconded by Commissioner Concepcion to approve the TIP 
amendment to include $50,000 for the surface mount delineator project on US-322 in the 2025-
2028 Centre County TIP. The motion carried 12 – 0.  

b. PROTECT PROGRAM – $1.38 million for the Centre County Resilient Routes Study  
Mr. Saylor provided a brief report on a proposed TIP amendment to include $1.38 million for the 
Centre County Resilient Routes Study. Mr. Saylor stated that, as discussed in previous 
meetings, staff submitted a scaled-back version of Phase 1 at a cost of $500,000, which 
PennDOT awarded earlier this year. Following that approval, PennDOT Central Office 
determined that additional funding was available, and after further information was submitted 
for Phases 2 and 3, PennDOT allocated $1.38 million for all three phases. This enables the MPO 
to complete the project in its entirety: identifying the areas of repeated and significant 
vulnerability to severe weather, developing and prioritizing projects to address those areas, and 
developing solutions and programming projects through the first steps of the permitting 
process. Funding would be administered through the TIP by a district engineering agreement. 
This amendment would allow funds to be allocated by the end of the current fiscal year, in 
order to start the study as quickly as possible. 

The Committee offered no comments or questions. 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

Motion was made by Commissioner Concepcion, seconded by Mr. Herndon to approve the second 
amendment to include $1.38 million in the 2025-2028 Centre County TIP for all three phases of the 
Centre County Resilient Routes Study. The motion carried 12 – 0.  

10. 2027-2030 CENTRE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS PLAN (TIP) 
INTRODUCTION: (00:40:30) 

This item was tabled for discussion at a future meeting, due to the power outage. 

11. Electric Vehicle (EV) SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATE: (00:40:48) 

Ms. Adams provided the Committee with a presentation on the EV Infrastructure Readiness 
Subcommittee, and its draft report on priorities for charging use types and optimal locations and 
communities. Ms. Adams gave a brief overview of the history of the Committee and the work 
completed to date, including the EV workshops that were held in April and May 2025. 

The Subcommittee has been gathering community input, and analyzing existing travel data, to plan 
for the growth in EV charging infrastructure in a logical and productive manner. Community 
engagement consisted of the municipal survey that took place last winter, 34 stakeholder 
interviews, and three listening sessions/workshops in April and May 2025. The Subcommittee used 
this data to identify high-travel roads and priority locations and destinations for EV charging 
infrastructure, and developed a report to submit to PennDOT’s National Electric Vehicle 
Infrastructure (NEVI) Program – though which PennDOT received $171.5 million in federal funds to 
install public EV charging stations across the state. PennDOT must first use this funding towards 
building a network of fast charging along major roadways, which are primarily interstate highways. 
However, PennDOT will allocate funds to community charging efforts as well.  

The EV Subcommittee developed a report that identifies the five priority charging use types, and the 
priority community zones in Centre County that PennDOT should consider for funding  to install 
charging infrastructure. The five priority charging use types were identified from the survey, 
stakeholder input, and workshop input. These priorities are as follows:  

1. Destination charging (parks, recreation, events) 
2. Public parking lots in cities and towns 
3. Parking for multi-family/high density housing on street 
4. Shopping centers (retail/grocery) 
5. Lodging 

The Subcommittee recommended the following location priorities for PennDOT to consider: 

• Tier 1/Top Priorities:  
o State College Borough 
o South Atherton Street (322 zone) 
o Centre Hall 

• Tier 2 Priorities: 
o Port Matilda 
o Millheim (along Route 45) 
o State College/Bellefonte area (focusing on those without access to their own garage) 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

There was discussion on whether this effort should be taken on by local government, individual 
business owners, or individuals purchasing electric vehicles. In addition, comments were made 
regarding the idea of utilizing a tax or fee for the public to use these charging stations to offset 
maintenance expenses. Ms. Adams clarified that if the funding is secured and allocated by 
PennDOT, it will be up to each individual municipality to utilize the funds. Ms. Adams went on to 
say that the action requested this evening is to send the Priority Local Use Cases and Optimal 
Communities report to PennDOT for consideration of funding if available. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Concepcion, seconded by Mr. Decker to approve of sending 
the electric vehicle report as presented to PennDOT. The motion carried 12 – 0. Mr. Harden 
abstained. 

12. PROJECTS COMMITTEE UPDATE: (00:57:26) 

Mrs. Hoffman provided an update on Projects Committee tasks and grant application efforts.  

Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) – Bellefonte EMS & HAAS Alert Safety Cloud 

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services (EMS) approached MPO staff regarding the SS4A grant 
awarded to the Centre Region COG last September. They are seeking staff assistance to apply for 
the grant, as they are not an eligible entity under the SS4A requirements. The CCMPO focuses on 
transportation safety, and sees value in collaborating with Bellefonte EMS to enhance post-crash 
care through a demonstration project. This initiative aims to analyze new technologies that provide 
advanced digital alerts to improve safety at crash sites and reduce the risk of secondary incidents.  

CCMPO staff verified our ability to collaborate with Bellefonte EMS to submit a grant application by 
June 29, 2025. The SS4A program supports funding for post-crash care improvements, and 
encourages collaborative efforts. Since the CCMPO has the only county-wide draft Action Plan, no 
conflicts exist with the Bellefonte EMS project. If awarded, Bellefonte EMS will manage the grant 
narrative and project, while CCMPO will handle invoicing, reporting to the U.S. Department of 
Transportation (USDOT), and reimbursements. A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) will be 
required to document the partnership. The project is estimated to require 15 hours of staff time 
quarterly during the grant period, with awards expected in fall 2025, and completion by spring or 
summer 2028. 

Mrs. Hoffman also mentioned that staff assisted Patton Township Police Department with its SS4A 
application. Since the CCMPO is the holder of the county-wide action plan, collaboration through 
all Centre County applications is necessary to ensure projects support the overall action plan. 
Patton Township Police submitted an application to install license plate readers along the North 
Atherton Street corridor for more efficient incident detection, traffic pattern analysis, and rapid law 
enforcement response. Patton Township Police is an eligible entity, so if awarded, it will manage 
the grant, and all reporting and financial requirements to FHWA. The final report will be included as 
an appendix to the overall Centre County Action Plan.  

Bridge Investment Program (BIP) Grant Application for FY 2026  
Mrs. Hoffman communicated that staff has not yet received any information about the Bridge 
Investment Program (BIP) application that was submitted last year for the I-80 Snow Shoe bridge.  
Because these types of grant applications are complex and require more time to develop, staff 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

already need to develop an application for this year’s grant application round. If the I-80 Snow Shoe 
bridge application is unsuccessful, staff would like to revise and resubmit for this year. If the bridge 
project is awarded, funding on the TIP could be reallocated to fund other projects.  

Following the Projects Committee's direction, staff are developing a local bridge bundle for this 
year’s application. However, these local bridge projects require further development before 
submission. Staff are currently awaiting bridge inspection reports to start a preliminary engineering 
phase for the Eagleville Road Bridge and Stahl’s Lane Bridge to inform next year’s application. 
While the BIP does not mandate preliminary engineering completion for application submission, it 
is encouraged to define the project scope. 

If the I-80 Snow Shoe bridge application is successful, staff requests to develop an application to 
replace the SR-144 concrete arch culvert over Potter Run in Potter Township this year. This bridge is 
near the old intersection of US-322 and SR-144 (prior to the Potters Mills Gap project). This project 
is important to complete ahead of the SCAC project, as it is a direct route for local residents to 
access US-322 and SR-144. The structure will be replaced with a reinforced concrete box culvert, 
and the construction phase will have some complexities based on the layout of the project area, 
the classification of Potter Run, and the arch culvert itself. The total cost of the project is a little 
over $4 million. As with the I-80 Snow Shoe bridge, if funds are awarded, current TIP funds will be 
reallocated to other projects, including local bridge projects. 

Motion was made by Mr. Reese, seconded by Mr. Decker to approve utilizing consultant funds to 
either revise and submit the SR-4005 Snow Shoe Bridge over I-80 project for the FY 2026 round if it 
is not successful, or develop an application for the SR-144 concrete arch culvert over Potter Run to 
submit by November 1, 2025, if the I-80 Snow Shoe Bridge application is successful. The motion 
carried 12 – 0. 

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS: (01:00:07) 

Mr. Bernier reminded the Committee that the next Technical Committee meeting is Wednesday, 
September 10, 2025, in the COG General Forum room. Mr. Bernier pointed out that the next 
Coordinating Committee meeting is Wednesday, September 17, 2025, which is a bit out of 
sequence, but is necessary to accommodate the schedule of adoption for the LRTP 2055. 

Mr. Bernier announced that in May 2025, Ron Buckalew – a previous long-time member of the 
CRPC who represented the Commission on the MPO Coordinating Committee for many years – 
passed away. Ron's contributions and extensive knowledge of Centre County were an asset during 
his time of service. 

Ms. Messner stated that the Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TASA) application period should 
be open in the immediate future. Members of the committee are encouraged to check the TASA 
webpage and see if their municipality would like to pursue a project. MPO staff will provide support 
to prospective municipal applicants to the best possible extent. 

Mr. Harden communicated that the Harris Township Board of Supervisors shared a letter to 
PennDOT District 2-0 and the CRPA, updating their concerns about the intersection of US-322 and 
Bear Meadows Road/Elks Club Road.  



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes  
Tuesday, June 24th, 2025 

  

 

   
 

Mr. Saylor announced that in June 2025, PennDOT released guidance for the 2027 and 2028 
Transportation Systems Management and Operations (TSMO) Capital Funding Initiative. Funding is 
intended to address mobility and safety issues, and is open to MPOs and RPOs. The funding is not 
generally intended to leverage or supplement the Green Light-Go (GLG) Funding Program focused 
on improving existing traffic signals. Applications can be submitted until August 31, 2025. CCMPO 
staff will consult with PennDOT District 2-0 staff on potential application development.  Members 
with suggestions or comments should refer them to CCMPO staff. 

14. MEMBER REPORTS: (01:18:50) 

Mr. Reese thanked Mrs. Hoffman for her willingness to consult with Worth Township on their DCED 
grant for this year, which will be submitted next week.  

Mr. Decker called the members’ attention to Potter Township’s letter in the agenda packet 
concerning the Township’s Planned Commercial-Industrial (PCI) zoning district as an area that the 
Township believes will grow into a business area. The Township strongly supports including a 
simple on-off interchange for this business district as it relates to the State College Area Connector 
(SCAC) project. 

Mr. Herndon from the State College Borough stated that the Borough has a draft of a proposed new 
zoning ordinance, and it is available to view on the Borough’s website. 

Commissioner Concepion stated that the County’s biggest priority is getting moved into the new 
community services building, which will bring all human services employees for the county under 
one roof in the old Centre Crest building in Bellefonte. This would create a more seamless and 
unified connection of all services within one space for visitors to navigate. 

Mr. Harden called attention to Potter Township’s letter contained in the agenda packet related to 
the intersection of Bear Meadows Road and Elks Club Road. Harris Township Supervisors had a 
meeting with PennDOT to discuss safety measures at this intersection. Harris Township will 
consider ways to implement safety measures at this intersection prior to the construction of the 
SCAC to reduce crashes.  

Mr. Bernier thanked staff for their diligence in getting the meeting back up and running. 

15. ADJOURNMENT (01:23:25) 

There being no other business, the June 24, 2025, CCMPO Coordinating Committee Meeting was 
motioned to adjourn by Mr. Harden at 7:47 pm.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Gabrielle Lauder 
Recording Secretary 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 4 of 18 

ITEM 6 
STATE COLLEGE AREA CONNECTOR PROJECT 

Status Report 
 

The SCAC Planning and Environment Linkages (PEL) Study was finalized in June 2023, and 
FHWA has formally accepted the report.  A Notice of Intent (NOI) to submit an Environmental 
Impact Statement (EIS) for the project has been published.   
 
As part of the development of the EIS, work continues on the refinement of alternatives 
recommended in the PEL.  On July 23, 2025, the project team announced changes to the north 
and central alternatives to reduce potential impacts. The central alternative remains the 
recommended preferred alternative.  PennDOT expects to release a draft of the EIS alter this 
year, and to conduct a public hearing for the document.  
 
The team conducted a plans display as part of the 2025 Grange Fair and provided an updated 
newsletter. In June, the Potter Township Board of Supervisors shared a letter written to the project 
team about their concerns. A copy of the reply from PennDOT to the Board is attached. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the status report. 
 
 Presented by:  Eric Murnyack, P.E., PennDOT District 2-0 

Kevin James, P.E., SCAC Project Manager, Michael Baker International 
 
                                              No action required 
 

 
SCAC website: www.PennDOT.gov/SCAC 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.penndot.gov/SCAC


OS-2C (12-24)  

 
 

 
Engineering District 2-0 

70 PennDOT Drive | Clearfield, PA  16830 | 814.765.0400 | www.pa.gov/penndot 
 

June 30, 2025 
 
 
 

Potter Township 
124 Short Road 
Spring Mills, PA 16875 
 
RE: State College Area Connector 
 
Dear Board of Supervisors, 
 

Thank you for your comments and words of support on the State College Area 
Connector. We appreciate your continued engagement on the project and offer the following in 
response to your comments. 
 

As part of the State College Area Connector, PennDOT has thoroughly evaluated and 
considered a mid-point interchange. As we stated previously, once the PA 45 connector was 
removed from the project, a mid-point interchange was expected to have low traffic volumes, 
result in greater environmental impacts (e.g., Section 106 historic resources and productive 
agriculture), and is not necessary to meet the project’s purpose and needs. While we 
understand the Township has a business district in the area, this area would still retain access 
under the Recommended Preferred Alternative. Additionally, the National Environmental Policy 
Act (NEPA) prohibits the inclusion of speculative projects (e.g. projects that are based purely on 
speculation without approved development proposals) from consideration in the alternative 
analysis. Consequently, PennDOT cannot support advancing a mid-point interchange or exit 
ramps.  
 

As the project advances, PennDOT will develop the roundabout being designed, as well 
as the current roundabout in Potters Mills, to ensure that they meet current standards which 
includes the use of large trucks.  
 

PennDOT understands that local land use and travel patterns change over time, and 
these changes may necessitate adjustments to the area roadway network, including future 
consideration of a mid-point interchange. As such, the Recommended Preferred Alternative 
currently under consideration is being developed in a manner that does not preclude the future 
inclusion of an interchange, should it be warranted.  
 

We look forward to continuing to work with Potter Township on this project.  
 
     Sincerely, 
 
 
 

Thomas Prestash, P.E. 
District Executive 
Engineering District 2-0 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 5 of 18 
ITEM 7 

2025-2028 CENTRE COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) 

 
TIP Revisions 

Highway Safety Improvement Program 
 
The 2025-2028 Centre County TIP was adopted by the CCMPO in June 2024 and took effect on 
October 1, 2024. 
 
The TIP includes a line item with $454,000 in funding from the Highway Safety Improvement Program 
for Federal Fiscal Year 2025. PennDOT personnel propose allocating all $454,000 to a project to install 
high friction surface treatments (HFST) at locations on US 322 in Harris Township, SR 350 in Rush 
Township, and SR 455 in Penn Township.   
 
The CCMPO must formally approve a revision to the TIP to program the new project using Federal 
funds. 
 

Summary of Recommended Amendment to 2023-2026 TIP 

Where are the funds coming FROM? 

Project Original 
Funding Change Revised 

Funding 
Line Item Safety/SAF $454,000 -$454,000  $0 

 
Where are the funds going TO? 

2026 Centre HFST – Lane Dep  
$0 

 
$454,000 

 
$454,000 

 
Attachment: 

• Fiscal Constraint Chart illustrating details of funding revisions. 
• Map Showing Locations. 

 
MPO and PennDOT District 2-0 staff will provide a brief update about the proposed revisions. The 
Technical Committee has recommended approval of this revision to the Coordinating Committee. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the update and consider approving the revisions to 
the 2025-2028 TIP. 
 
 Presented by:  Jim Saylor, CRPA 

   Mark, Schultz., PennDOT District 2-0 
 

Action: Approve revisions to the 2025-2028 Centre County TIP 
 

 
 
 
 



FISCAL CONSTRAINT CHART
FFY 2025-2028 TIP Highway/Bridge

Project Title MPMS Phase Amts Fed State Federal State Loc/Oth Federal State Loc/Oth Federal State Loc/Oth Federal State Loc/Oth
Line Item Safety Before HSIP 454,000 698,000 1,098,000 1,098,000

/SAF Adjust HSIP (454,000)

Centre After HSIP 698,000 1,098,000 1,098,000

2026 Centre HFST-Lane Departures Before HSIP

350/HFS Adjust HSIP 454,000

Centre After HSIP 454,000
$454,000 $0 $0 $698,000 $0 $0 $1,098,000 $0 $0 $1,098,000 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$454,000 $0 $0 $698,000 $0 $0 $1,098,000 $0 $0 $1,098,000 $0 $0

Remarks
AMENDMENT  (MA ID: ) Fund Type FFY 2025 FFY 2026 FFY 2027 FFY 2028

NOTES

75808 CON Reserve Line Item

122631 CON New Project, Approved HSIP 
Application ID 2025-02-5

Before Totals
Adjustment Totals

After Totals

Actions do not affect air quality 
conformity.

X:\Departments\Planning\MPO\2025\Agendas\Technical Committee\4 - September\Item 7.1 CCMPO FCC Amend TIP HSIP



© 2023 PA Department of Transportation

August 26, 2025

PennDOT
 

0 10 205 mi

0 10 205 km

1:696,496

HFST Locations



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 6 of 18 
ITEM 8 

 
2025 Centre County Air Quality Conformity Analysis 

Centre County 2055 Long Rane Transportation Plan (LRTP)  

Public Comment Period Summary, Public Comments and Responses 
 
During the June 2025 Coordinating Committee meeting the 30-day public comment period and Open 
House to receive public comments on the draft plan and air quality conformity analysis as well as to 
hold an Open House on July 22, 2025 was authorized. During their June 24, 2025 meeting, the 
Coordinating Committee received the recommendation and approved moving forward with the 30-day 
comment period and Open House sessions on July 22, 2025. 
 
Staff will provide a brief presentation about the public comments and the Open House. 
 
Attached is:  
• Public Comment Period Summary 
• Public Comments and Responses  
 
At the June 10, 2025 meeting the Technical Committee recommended approval of the Public 
Comment Period Summary for the 2025 Air Quality Conformity Analysis Report and the 2055 LRTP 
with no comments. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the brief presentation and consider approval of the 
responses to the Public Comment Period Summary for the 2025 Air Quality Conformity Analysis 
Report and the 2055 LRTP. 
 
Presented by: Anne Messner, AICP, CRPA  
 
Action: Motion to approve the responses to comments in the Public Comment Period Summary for the 
2025 Air Quality Conformity Analysis Report and the 2055 LRTP. 
 
  



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 7 of 18 
Item 8.1 – Public Comment Period Summary 

 
I. When Was the Draft Air Quality Conformity Report and Draft 2055 LRTP Made Available 

for Public Comment? 
 
June 30, 2025 The Public Meeting flyer, Draft Air Quality Conformity Report and Draft 2055 LRTP 

documents were posted on the CCMPO’s website. The website included the option 
of submitting an online comment form. 

June 30, 2025 The 30-day public comment period was formally initiated. Classified advertisements 
were placed in The Progress (Clearfield/Philipsburg), The Express (Lock Haven), and 
The Centre Daily Times (State College) newspapers. Notices included the dates for 
the start and conclusion of the comment period; the locations at which the Air 
Quality Conformity Report and 2055 LRTP were available for review; the date, time, 
and location of the public meeting; and the date, time, and location of the meeting at 
which the Coordinating Committee would consider approving the Conformity 
Report, and the 2055 LRTP. 

June 30, 2025 A press release was sent to 67 broadcast and 25 media outlets, including web-based 
community news publishers serving Centre County. A Facebook post was created 
and shared 5 times in the CCMPO Facebook page. 

June 30, 2025 A notice was emailed and mailed to Native American Tribes and Nations whose 
ancestors had at one time lived in Centre County. The notice directed tribal 
representatives to the website, where all documents could be accessed. 

June 30, 2025 A notice was emailed to the municipal managers or secretaries for the 35 
municipalities in Centre County. The notice included the website address to access 
the documents, the dates for the start and conclusion of the public comment period 
and the public meeting. 

June 30, 2025 A notice was emailed to 129 persons on the mailing list for CCMPO meetings and 
agendas. The notice included the website address to access the documents and the 
dates for the public comment period and public meeting. The mailing list includes 
local officials and citizens, committee members, and staff members for federal and 
state legislators. 

June 30, 2025 A notice was emailed to 89 organizations designated as “interested parties” in the 
CCMPO’s Public Participation Plan (PPP). The interested parties include: affected 
public agencies, representatives of public transportation employees, freight 
shippers, providers of freight transportation services, private providers of 
transportation, representatives of users of public transportation, representatives of 
users of pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation facilities, representatives of 
the disabled, and other entities. The notice included the web address to access the 
documents and the dates for the public comment period and public meeting. 

July 22, 2025 A Public Meeting was held July 22, 2025 from 3:00 pm to 4:30 pm (with virtual option) 
and 6 to 7:30 pm . Staff members from the Centre Regional Planning Agency (CRPA), 
the Centre County Planning and Community Development Office (CCPCDO) and the 
Michael Baker Consulting Team were present to respond to questions and receive 
comments. There were 18 attendees for the first session and 1 attendee for the 
second session.  

July 31, 2025 The 30-day public comment period concluded at 5:00 p.m. 
  



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 8 of 18 
ITEM 9 

 
2025 CENTRE COUNTY AIR QUALITY CONFORMITY 

DETERMINATION REPORT  
 

Conformity Determination Report and Air Quality Conformity Resolution 
 

In 2018, the U.S. Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals vacated major portions of a rule impacting air quality 
conformity requirements for the 1997 8-hour Ozone National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). 
The ruling requires previous air quality non-attainment and maintenance areas to meet conformity 
requirements for the 1997 8-hour ozone NAAQS.  
 
This court decision designated Centre County as an “orphan” maintenance area since the County was 
in maintenance status for the 1997 NAAQS, and was subsequently designated as an attainment area 
for the 2008 NAAQS. Although official attainment designations have yet to be made by the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regarding the 2015 NAAQS, Centre County is also in 
attainment with the 2015 standards.  
 
In November 2018, EPA issued guidance for how transportation conformity determinations can be 
made in the orphan maintenance areas. The guidance allows conformity to be determined without the 
detailed regional emissions analysis that was typically performed in the past for the Centre County 
Transportation Improvement Programs (TIP) and Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP).  
 
An Air Quality Conformity Determination Report that meets the EPA’s guidance was completed in May 
2025 for 2055 Long Range Transportation Plan. The preparation and approval of the Conformity 
Determination Report ensures that the 2055 LRTP meet federal transportation conformity 
requirements and are consistent with Pennsylvania’s State Implementation Plan (SIP).  
 
Attached are:  
• Draft 2025 Air Quality Conformity Determination Report 
• Draft 2025 Air Quality Conformity Resolution  
 
Staff will provide a brief verbal summary and will answer questions from the Committee.  
 
During the June 10, 2025 Technical Committee meeting a recommendation was made to the 
Coordinating Committee to adopt 2025 Conformity Determination Report and the 2025 Conformity 
Resolution with no additional comments.  
 
The Coordinating Committee should consider adoption of the 2025 Conformity Determination 
Report and the 2025 Conformity Resolution.  
 
Presented by: Anne Messner, AICP, CRPA  
 
Action: Adopt the 2025 Air Quality Conformity Determination Report. 
 
Action: Adopt the 2025 Air Quality Conformity Resolution. 
  



 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Transportation Conformity Determination Report 
1997 Ozone NAAQS 
 

 
 

 
 
Transportation Conformity Determination 
Centre County                
 
 
 
 

2055 Long Range 
Transportation Plan (LRTP) 

 

 
 
 
 

May 2025  
  



 
 
 
 
 

 

Table of Contents 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

1.0 BACKGROUND ..................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 CCMPO LRTP ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

3.0 TRANSPORTATION CONFORMITY PROCESS ............................................................................................ 4 

4.0 TRANSPORTATION CONFORMITY REQUIREMENTS .............................................................................. 5 

5.0       CONCLUSION ....................................................................................................................................................... 6 

 
 

APPENDIX A:  Regionally Significant Project List (Centre County)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



1 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 

Executive Summary 
As part of its transportation planning process, the Centre County Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (CCMPO) completed the transportation conformity process 
for the 2055 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP). The LRTP includes projects 
from PennDOT’s 2025-2036 Twelve-Year Program (TYP), and other projects 
identified within the LRTP planning process that are financially constrained. This 
report documents that the TYP and LRTP meet the federal transportation conformity 
requirements in 40 CFR Part 93.   
 
Clean Air Act (CAA) section 176(c) (42 U.S.C. 7506(c)) requires that federally funded 
or approved highway and transit activities are consistent with (“conform to”) the 
purpose of the State Implementation Plan (SIP) for air quality.  Conformity to the 
purpose of the SIP means that transportation activities will not cause or contribute to 
new air quality violations, worsen existing violations, or delay timely attainment of 
the relevant national ambient air quality standard (NAAQS) or any interim 
milestones. EPA’s transportation conformity rules establish the criteria and 
procedures for determining whether metropolitan transportation plans, 
transportation improvement programs (TIPs), and federally supported highway and 
transit projects conform to the SIP.    
 
On February 16, 2018, the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia 
Circuit in South Coast Air Quality Mgmt. District v. EPA (“South Coast II,” 882 F.3d 
1138) held that transportation conformity determinations must be made in areas that 
were either nonattainment or maintenance for the 1997 ozone national ambient air 
quality standard (NAAQS) and attainment for the 2008 ozone NAAQS when the 
1997 ozone NAAQS was revoked. These conformity determinations are required in 
these areas after February 16, 2019. The State College, PA area (encompassing Centre 
County) was maintenance at the time of the 1997 ozone NAAQS revocation on April 
6, 2015 and was also designated attainment for the 2008 ozone NAAQS on May 21, 
2012. Therefore, per the South Coast II decision, this conformity determination is 
being made for the 1997 ozone NAAQS. 
 
This conformity determination was completed consistent with CAA requirements, 
existing associated regulations at 40 CFR Parts 51.390 and 93, and the South Coast II 
decision, according to EPA’s Transportation Conformity Guidance for the South Coast II 
Court Decision issued on November 29, 2018.



2 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 1.0 Background 
 
 

  1.1 Transportation Conformity Process 
 

The concept of transportation conformity was introduced in the CAA of 1977, which 
included a provision to ensure that transportation investments conform to a State 
Implementation Plan (SIP) for meeting the Federal air quality standards. Conformity 
requirements were made substantially more rigorous in the CAA Amendments of 
1990. The transportation conformity regulations that detail implementation of the 
CAA requirements were first issued in November 1993, and have been amended 
several times. The regulations establish the criteria and procedures for transportation 
agencies to demonstrate that air pollutant emissions from metropolitan 
transportation plans, transportation improvement programs and projects are 
consistent with (“conform to”) the State’s air quality goals in the SIP. This document 
has been prepared for State and local officials who are involved in decision making 
on transportation investments. 
 
Transportation conformity is required under CAA Section 176(c) to ensure that 
Federally-supported transportation activities are consistent with (“conform to”) the 
purpose of a State’s SIP. Transportation conformity establishes the framework for 
improving air quality to protect public health and the environment. Conformity to 
the purpose of the SIP means Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) funding and approvals are given to highway and 
transit activities that will not cause new air quality violations, worsen existing air 
quality violations, or delay timely attainment of the relevant air quality standard, or 
any interim milestone. 

 
 

1.2 National Ambient Air Quality Standards  
 

The CAA requires the EPA to set NAAQS for pollutants considered harmful to 
public health and the environment.  A nonattainment area is any area that does not 
meet the primary or secondary NAAQS.  Once a nonattainment area meets the 
standards and additional redesignation requirements in the CAA [Section 
107(d)(3)(E)], EPA will designate the area as a maintenance area.   
 
Centre County is currently designated as a maintenance area under the 1997 8-hour 
ozone NAAQS.  The county is in attainment of the 2008 and 2015 8-hour ozone, 2006 
24-hour PM2.5 and 2012 annual PM2.5 NAAQS. Transportation conformity requires 
nonattainment and maintenance areas to demonstrate that all future transportation 
projects will not prevent an area from reaching its air quality attainment goals. 
  
 

 



3 

 
 
 
 
 

  

1997 8-hour Ozone NAAQS 

The EPA published the 1997 8-hour ozone NAAQS on July 18, 1997 (62 FR 38856), 
with an effective date of September 16, 1997.  An area was in nonattainment of the 
1997 8-hour ozone NAAQS if the 3-year average of the individual fourth highest air 
quality monitor readings, averaged over 8 hours throughout the day, exceeded the 
NAAQS of 0.08 parts per million (ppm).  On May 21, 2013, the EPA published a rule 
revoking the 1997 8-hour ozone NAAQS, for the purposes of transportation 
conformity, effective one year after the effective date of the 2008 8-hour ozone 
NAAQS area designations (77 FR 30160).   
 
On February 16, 2018 the D.C. Circuit reached a decision in South Coast Air Quality 
Management District v. EPA, Case No. 15-1115. In that decision, the court vacated 
major portions of the final rule that established procedures for transitioning from the 
1997 ozone NAAQS to the stricter 2008 ozone NAAQS.  By court decision, Centre 
County was designated as an “orphan” maintenance area since the area was 
maintenance for the 1997 ozone NAAQS at the time of its revocation (80 FR 12264, 
March 6, 2015) and was designated attainment for the 2008 NAAQS in EPA’s original 
designations for this NAAQS (77 FR 30160, May 21, 2012). 
 
2008 and 2015 8-hour Ozone NAAQS 

The EPA published the 2008 8-hour ozone NAAQS on March 27, 2008 (73 FR 16436), 
with an effective date of May 27, 2008.  EPA revised the ozone NAAQS by 
strengthening the standard to 0.075 ppm.  Thus, an area is in nonattainment of the 
2008 8-hour ozone NAAQS if the 3-year average of the individual fourth highest air 
quality monitor readings, averaged over 8 hours throughout the day, exceeds the 
NAAQS of 0.075 ppm.  Centre County was designated as an attainment area under 
the 2008 8-hour ozone NAAQS, effective July 20, 2012 (77 FR 30088).   
 
In October 2015, based on its review of the air quality criteria for ozone and related 
photochemical oxidants, the EPA revised the primary and secondary NAAQS for 
ozone to provide requisite protection of public health and welfare, respectively (80 
FR 65292). The EPA revised the levels of both standards to 0.070 ppm, and retained 
their indicators, forms (fourth-highest daily maximum, averaged across three 
consecutive years) and averaging times (eight hours). Under the Clean Air Act, the 
EPA administrator is required to make all attainment designations within two years 
after a final rule revising the NAAQS is published.  Centre County is in attainment of 
the 2015 8-hour ozone NAAQS. 

 
 
 

 

2.0 CCMPO LRTP 
The Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) serves as the official transportation plan 
for a metropolitan area. The LRTP documents the current and future transportation 
demand and identifies long-term improvements and projects to meet those needs. 
The Centre County LRTP will be adopted in September 2025 and guides decision-
making about transportation improvements in the county. The planning factors 

https://www.crcog.net/lrtp#:%7E:text=Centre%20County%20Long%20Range%20Transportation%20Plan%20%28LRTP%29%20The,guides%20decision-making%20about%20transportation%20improvements%20in%20Centre%20County.


4 

 
 
 
 
 

  

specified in federal regulations provide the framework for developing an LRTP. In 
addition, PennDOT provides guidance to help MPOs prepare LRTPs, and local 
policies and plans play a role in LRTP development to ensure transportation 
investments address current and future needs. 

The February 16, 2018, South Coast vs. EPA Court decision did not vacate EPA’s 
revocation of the 1997 ozone standard and the decision does not change the area’s 
attainment status. Therefore, while such areas might be required to meet conformity 
requirements as part of anti-backsliding controls, such areas are not considered 
nonattainment or maintenance areas under the Transportation Planning Rule (23 
CFR 450.104). Such areas continue to complete 5-year metropolitan transportation 
plan (aka LRTP) update cycles as described in 23 CFR 450.324(c). The 5-year 
metropolitan transportation plan update cycle continues to apply from the date of 
the most recent MPO metropolitan transportation plan adoption (not the most recent 
FHWA/FTA conformity determination). While these areas have a 5-year plan cycle 
for transportation planning purposes, as a result of the court decision they must still 
meet the 4-year frequency requirements for conformity determinations on TIPs and 
LRTPs as required by 40 CFR 93.104. 

Appendix A provides a listing of the regional significant projects that are funded in 
the TYP and LRTP within Centre County.  Regionally significant projects include 
transportation projects (other than exempt projects as defined under 40 CFR 93.126-
127) that are on a facility which serves regional transportation needs. 

 
 

3.0 Transportation Conformity Process  

Per the court’s decision in South Coast II, beginning February 16, 2019, a 
transportation conformity determination for the 1997 ozone NAAQS will be needed 
in 1997 ozone NAAQS nonattainment and maintenance areas identified by EPA1 for 
certain transportation activities, including updated or amended TIPs and LRTPs. 
Once US DOT makes its 1997 ozone NAAQS conformity determination, conformity 
will be required no less frequently than every four years. This conformity 
determination report addresses transportation conformity for the CCMPO 2055 
LRTP. 

 
 

4.0 Transportation Conformity Requirements  
 
 

  4.1 Overview 
 

On November 29, 2018, EPA issued Transportation Conformity Guidance for the 
South Coast II Court Decision2 (EPA-420-B-18-050, November 2018) that addresses 

 
1 The areas identified can be found in EPA’s “Transportation Conformity Guidance for the South Coast II Court Decision, EPA-
420-B-18-050, available on the web at:  www.epa.gov/state-and-local-transportation/policy-and-technical-guidance-state-and-
local-transportation . 
2 Available from Policy and Technical Guidance for State and Local Transportation | US EPA 

http://www.epa.gov/state-and-local-transportation/policy-and-technical-guidance-state-and-local-transportation
http://www.epa.gov/state-and-local-transportation/policy-and-technical-guidance-state-and-local-transportation
https://www.epa.gov/state-and-local-transportation/policy-and-technical-guidance-state-and-local-transportation


5 

 
 
 
 
 

  

how transportation conformity determinations can be made in areas that were 
nonattainment or maintenance for the 1997 ozone NAAQS when the 1997 ozone 
NAAQS was revoked, but were designated attainment for the 2008 ozone NAAQS in 
EPA’s original designations for this NAAQS (May 21, 2012).   

 
The transportation conformity regulation at 40 CFR 93.109 sets forth the criteria and 
procedures for determining conformity. The conformity criteria for TIPs and LRTPs 
include: latest planning assumptions (93.110), latest emissions model (93.111), 
consultation (93.112), transportation control measures (93.113(b) and (c), and 
emissions budget and/or interim emissions (93.118 and/or 93.119). 
 
For the 1997 ozone NAAQS areas, transportation conformity for TIPs and LRTPs for 
the 1997 ozone NAAQS can be demonstrated without a regional emissions analysis, 
per 40 CFR 93.109(c). This provision states that the regional emissions analysis 
requirement applies one year after the effective date of EPA’s nonattainment 
designation for a NAAQS and until the effective date of revocation of such NAAQS 
for an area. The 1997 ozone NAAQS revocation was effective on April 6, 2015, and 
the South Coast II court upheld the revocation. As no regional emission analysis is 
required for this conformity determination, there is no requirement to use the latest 
emissions model, or budget or interim emissions tests.  

Therefore, transportation conformity for the 1997 ozone NAAQS can be 
demonstrated by showing the remaining requirements in Table 1 in 40 CFR 93.109 
have been met.  These requirements, which are laid out in Section 2.4 of EPA’s 
guidance and addressed below, include:  

• Latest planning assumptions (93.110) 
• Consultation (93.112) 
• Transportation Control Measures (93.113) 
• Fiscal constraint (93.108)    

 
 

4.2 Latest Planning Assumptions 
 

The use of latest planning assumptions in 40 CFR 93.110 of the conformity rule 
generally applies to a regional emissions analysis. In the 1997 ozone NAAQS areas, 
the use of latest planning assumptions requirement applies to assumptions about 
transportation control measures (TCMs) in an approved SIP.  However, the Centre 
County SIP maintenance plan does not include any TCMs. 

 
 

 
 

4.3 Consultation Requirements 

The consultation requirements in 40 CFR 93.112 were addressed both for interagency 
consultation and public consultation. 

As required by the federal transportation conformity rule, the conformity process 
includes a significant level of cooperative interaction among federal, state, and local 
agencies.  For this air quality conformity analysis, interagency consultation was 



6 

 
 
 
 
 

  

conducted as required by the Pennsylvania Conformity SIP.  This included 
conference call(s) or meeting(s) of the Pennsylvania Transportation-Air Quality Work 
Group (including the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT), DEP, 
EPA, FHWA, FTA and representatives from larger MPOs within the state). 

Meeting and conference calls are conducted quarterly and include the review of all 
input planning assumptions, methodologies and analysis years.  This conformity 
analysis utilizes the assumptions and models used for the last biennial TIP update, 
which was coordinated through work group meetings in early 2024. Coordination 
through Pennsylvania’s Interagency Consultation Group (ICG) on the review of 
regionally significant projects and the conformity report was conducted separately 
through email in May 2025. 

The LRTP and associated conformity determination has undergone the public 
participation requirements as well as the comment and response requirements 
according to the procedures established in compliance with 23 CFR part 450, 
CCMPO’s Public Participation Plan, and Pennsylvania's Conformity SIP.  The draft 
document was made available for a 30-day public review and comment period 
starting in June 2025, which included a public meeting.   
 

4.4 Fiscal Constraint 
 
The planning regulations, Sections 450.324(f)(11) and 450.326(j), require the 
transportation plan to be financially constrained while the existing transportation 
system is being adequately operated and maintained.  Only projects for which 
construction and operating funds are reasonably expected to be available are 
included.  The CCMPO, in conjunction with PennDOT, FHWA and FTA, has 
developed an estimate of the cost to maintain and operate existing roads, bridges and 
transit systems in the region and have compared the cost with the estimated 
revenues and maintenance needs of the new roads over the same period.  The 
CCMPO LRTP has been determined to be financially constrained. 

 
 

 

5.0 Conclusion 
 

The conformity determination process completed for the CCMPO LRTP 
demonstrates that these planning documents meet the Clean Air Act and 
Transportation Conformity rule requirements for the 1997 ozone NAAQS. 

 

  



7 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Appendix A 
Regionally Significant Project List 

Centre County 
 

 
 

Project Name Description 

PennDOT Highway-Bridge TYP (2025-2036) 

Exit 161 Bellefonte 
Interchange 
(MPMS 3142) 

Construction of High Speed Interchange between I-99 and I-80 at the 
existing Exit 161.  ITS components include: retrofit existing dynamic 
message sign (DMS), install RWIS tower, remove existing CCTV, two 
new CCTV installed, install conduit.  Project located in Boggs, Spring 
and Marion Townships, Centre County. 

State College Area 
Connector 
(MPMS 112784) 

Construction of an approximately 8-mile four-lane limited access 
facility connecting the Mount Nittany Expressway near Boalsburg to 
the newly constructed limited access portion of U.S. 322 at Potters Mills. 

Park Avenue Widening 
(MPMS 2759) 

Safety Improvement on State Route 3007, from Hospital Drive to 
Shortlidge Road, in College Township & State College Borough, Centre 
County. 

Atherton Street Phase 
III 
(MPMS 101960) 

Highway reconstruction work on State Route 3014, Atherton Street. 
Work will consist of the reconstruction of the drainage system and a 
mill and overlay of the existing pavement. Minor widening 
(approximately .7 mile eastbound and .7 mile westbound for a total of 
1.4 miles) is anticipated in areas along with ADA ramp reconstruction 
and minor traffic signal work (interconnected), Park Avenue to 
Westerly Parkway. Install 1 full-color standard Dynamic Message Sign 
(DMS), 1 full-color Type A DMS, and 2 HD CCTV cameras to aid in 
Integrated Corridor Management between I-99, US 322, and Atherton 
Street in State College Borough, Patton and Harris Townships. 

Atherton Street Phase 
IV 
(MPMS 101961) 

Highway Restoration and drainage improvements on State Route 3014 
(Atherton Street), from Westerly Parkway to Scenery Drive, in State 
College Borough and College Township, Centre County. 

Atherton/University/E. 
Branch Road 
Intersections 
(MPMS 121321) 

Improve operating conditions through traffic signal upgrades, 
coordination and channelized lanes on State Route 3014, Atherton 
Street, at the intersections of University and East Branch Road, in State 
College Borough & College Township, Centre County.  

  



8 

 
 
 
 
 

  

2055 Long Range Transportation Plan  
Financial-Constrained Air Quality Significant Projects 

College - Beaver 
Avenue Transit Signal 
Priority (TSP) and 
Intelligent 
Transportation Systems 
(ITS) 

Implement transit signal priority and related ITS technologies along the 
College and Beaver Avenue corridors in State College Borough.  The 
project area will include intersections at Atherton Street, Burrowes 
Street / Road, Fraser Street, Allen Street, Pugh Street, Garner Street / 
Shortlidge Road, High Street, and the University Drive ramps. 

Altoona-Tyrone 
Commuter Service 

Establish commuter bus service and/or ridesharing services linking the 
Altoona and Tyrone areas to the State College area. 

Tyrone AMTRAK 
PAssenger Rail Linkage 

Establish pre-scheduled microtransit service linking the State College 
area to AMTRAK passenger rail service at the Tyrone station.  Project 
could be informed by the findings of the CCMPO Passenger Rail Study. 

 



Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) 
 

2025 Air Quality Conformity Resolution 
 
Conformity of the Centre County 2055 Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) in 
accordance with the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990. 
 
WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States enacted the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 which 
were signed into law and became effective on November 15, 1990, hereafter referred to as the CAAA; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), under the authority of the 
CAAA, has defined the geographic boundaries for areas that have been found to be in nonattainment 
with the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for ozone, carbon monoxide and particulate 
matter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the EPA issued the Final Rule on Transportation Conformity on November 24, 1993 for 
transportation plans, programs and projects, and amended the Final Conformity Rule various times 
between 1996 and present; and 
 
WHEREAS, effective July 15, 2004, Centre County was designated by EPA as a non-attainment area 
under the 1997 eight-hour ozone NAAQS; and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 14, 2007, Centre County was re-designated under the 1997 eight-hour 
ozone NAAQS as an attainment (maintenance) area by EPA with motor vehicle emissions budgets 
(MVEBs) established in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s State Implementation Plan (SIP) 
maintenance plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 6, 2015, EPA revoked the 1997 eight-hour ozone NAAQS for all purposes and 
established anti-backsliding requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Eighth Circuit issued a decision in South Coast Air 
Quality Management District v. EPA on February 16, 2018 addressing air quality requirements for 
former 1997 ozone maintenance areas that are in attainment of all subsequent ozone NAAQS, for 
which Centre County satisfies the criteria; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the EPA issued the Transportation Conformity Guidance for the South Coast II Court 
Decision on November 29, 2018 to address how transportation conformity determinations can be 
made for the 1997 ozone NAAQS; and 
 
WHEREAS, transportation plans and programs are required to conform to the purpose of the SIP 
and Sections 174 and 176 (c and d) of the CAAA [42 U.S.C. 7504, 7506 (c and d)]; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) [Centre County MSA] is 
responsible for the development of transportation plans and programs in accordance with Section 134 
of Title 23, which requires coordination and public participation with the Pennsylvania Department of 
Transportation (PennDOT); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Final Conformity Rule (and subsequent amendments) requires the CCMPO to 
determine that its transportation plans and programs conform with the CAAA requirements by 
meeting the Final Rule on Transportation Conformity; and 
 
(Continued) 
  



WHEREAS, an air quality analysis and conformity determination has been prepared for the Centre 
County 2055 LRTP for the 1997 ozone NAAQS; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the CCMPO has found the Centre County 2055 LRTP  
contribute to the achievement and maintenance of the 1997 8-hour ozone NAAQS; and the CCMPO 
has found that the 2055 LRTP is consistent with the final conformity rule issued on November 24, 
1993 and subsequent amendments; and that this conformity determination demonstrates that the 
requirements of 40 CFR Part 93 regarding conformity to the State Implementation Plan are met. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY CCMPO Coordinating Committee on September 17, 2025. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________  BY: ______________________________ 
Pamela J. Adams     L. Eric Bernier 
CCMPO Secretary     CCMPO Chair 
 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 9 of 18 
ITEM 10 

 
CENTRE COUNTY 

2055 LONG-RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLAN (LRTP) 
 

The final Draft 2055 LRTP is now provided as part of the final steps to adoption for LRTP development 
process. As a reminder, performance-based planning is emphasized as part of plan development, as 
well as a listing of fiscally-constrained projects in support of the implementation of federal 
performance measures. The plan also contains information related to forecasted revenue for the life 
of the plan, anticipating a flat level of funding beyond the 12-Year Program (or years 2037-2055). 
 
Major work tasks on the update of the long-range transportation plan (LRTP) since the June 24 
Coordinating Committee meeting have included the following: 
 

• Projects from the draft LRTP were submitted to the Interagency Consultation Group (ICG) to 
initiate the review process for the conformity document. The ICG ensures that our 
transportation plans, programs, and projects conform to air quality goals set under the Clean 
Air Act. The Conformity Analysis is included in the draft plan as Appendix G. 

• As previously stated MPO staff administered a formal 30-day Public Review and Comment 
Period, which ran from June 30 to July 31, 2025 as well has held open house sessions on July 
22, 2025. As part of this, MPO staff distributed draft plans on June 26 to locations throughout 
the county for public review.  

• Comments were received from the public and reviewing agencies. The planning team reviewed 
all comments received and developed a recommended response and edits in the plan where 
applicable. These are included in the draft plan as Appendix I. 

• The team will deliver a presentation during the Technical Committee meeting summarizing the 
draft LRTP. 

Due to the size and length of the document, the 2055 Draft LRTP is not attached to the agenda and is 
available here:  https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-
BAC6A6336348%7D/uploads/CCMPO_LRTP_Draft_9-4-2025-reduced(1).pdf  
 
On September 10, 2025, the Technical Committee recommended adoption of the 2055 LRTP to the 
Coordinating Committee with no additional comments. 
 

Presented by: Anne Messner, AICP, CRPA 
 Peyton Trussell, Michael Baker International 
  

Desired Action: Adopt the 2055 LRTP.    
 
 
  

https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-BAC6A6336348%7D/uploads/CCMPO_LRTP_Draft_9-4-2025-reduced(1).pdf
https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-BAC6A6336348%7D/uploads/CCMPO_LRTP_Draft_9-4-2025-reduced(1).pdf


CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 10 of 18 
ITEM 11 

 
Review of Potential TSMO Projects  

 
In June 2025 PennDOT released guidance for the 2027 and 2028 Transportation Systems 
Management and Operations (TSMO) Capital Funding Initiative.  The program makes $10 million of 
federal Carbon Reduction Program (CRP) funding available in FFY 2027 and 2028.  This is a 
statewide funding round open to MPOs and RPOs to advance TSMO and ITS projects included in 
the four Regional Operations Plans (ROP) covering the state. The criteria shared prioritized the 
installation of new devices, deliverability, and encouraged collaboration between PennDOT 
District Offices, MPOs, and RPOs.  
 
The application window opened shortly before the June Coordinating Committee Meeting and 
closed on August 31.  CCMPO coordinated with District two staff and identified the following four 
projects for submission (in order of priority assigned):  
 

• ST12/TI-06: US 322, Phillipsburg to I-99 ITS – The project would install cameras, a 
weather station, variable speed limit signs, flashing warning devices and message signs on 
US 322 between the Sandy Ridge and Port Matilda. ($1,250,000). 

• LT-02: I-80/I-99 Fiber Backbone – Project would install 11 miles of mainline fiber-optic 
backbone line, closing a current gap in facilities that extends from I-99 Exit 71 to the 
interchange with I-80. ($3,000,000) 

• ST-04: I-80 ICM (Exit 147-158); IU-02 College Twp Signal Improvements; FA-35  US 322 
ITS at College Ave Exit—Project would add a CCTV camera at the College Ave. Exit and 
upgrade signals at adjoining intersections to install preemption and command/control 
capability. ($550,000) 

• FA-08: I-99 VSL – Project would install variable speed limit signs along I-99 extending from 
Exit 61 (Port Matilda) to Exit 83 (Bellefonte). ($1,200,000) 

 
Due to the timeline of the application process, it was not possible to vet these candidates with the 
CCMPO committees, although an item about the opportunity soliciting member comments was 
included in the announcements for the June Coordinating Committee meeting.  
 
Staff notes that timeline for the Transportation Alternatives Set Aside (TASA) program may present 
a similar set of issues, with action required between the November and February meeting to 
prioritize applicants from the region.  At the time of writing, no applicants had reached out for the 
required coordination meetings.  
 
CCMPO staff will present a brief summary of the applications.  Members are invited to provide 
comments on the projects, the development process, or suggestions for similar situations in the 
future.  
 

Presented by: Jim Saylor, P.E., PTOE, CRPA 

Action:  Comments or questions to MPO staff. 
  



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 11 of 18 
ITEM 12 

CCMPO DRAFT CALENDAR YEAR (CY) 2026 BUDGET 
 

Review Draft Budget 
 
The CCMPO’s annual operating budget is included as a distinct cost center in the Centre Region 
Council of Governments (COG) calendar year budget. 
 
Preparation of the CY 2026 Budget is underway.  Staff will review the budget with the COG Finance 
Committee on September 11.  The budget will also be reviewed by the local funding partners in 
October.  
 
Staff will provide a presentation about the Draft CY 2026 Budget. 
 
The Coordinating Committee should receive the presentation and provide comments to the MPO 
staff. 
 
 Presented by: Jim Saylor, P.E., PTOE, CRPA 
 
 Action: Provide comments about the Draft CY 2025 CCMPO Budget to 

the MPO staff. 
  



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 12 of 18 

Item 13 
 

CENTRE COUNTY MPO STRATEGIC PLAN 
 

Progress in Implementation of the MPO Strategic Plan 
 
In 2022, the Centre County MPO initiated the development of its first-ever, operations-focused, 
organizational strategic plan. At the time, the MPO’s current organizational model was established 
nearly 20 years ago as part of its transition from the Centre Region MPO to a countywide MPO. Since 
that time, numerous changes have occurred in the transportation planning and programming 
process at both the federal and state levels. The CCMPO sought to revisit its structure to ensure that 
membership within both committees (Technical and Coordinating) was not only an accurate 
reflection of the county’s transportation interests, but also operating to their fullest potential. In 
June 2023, the CCMPO Strategic Plan was adopted. A corresponding implementation plan was 
developed during the summer of 2023 and presented in September 2023 as CCMPO Bylaw 
amendments.  

In November 2023, the Coordinating Committee took action to amend the CCMPO Bylaws as 
follows: 
• Membership terms were extended from two to four years 
• The appointment schedule was revised to be staggered so that not all members are appointed in 

the same year. 
• The Projects Committee structure was developed, and a set of Bylaws was created. 

Since then, staff have carried out several action items from the Strategic Plan; however, some 
remain unfinished. Staff will provide an overview of the actions from the adopted Strategic Plan that 
have been completed and those that have not.  

At its September 10 meeting, the MPO Technical Committee provided the following comments for 
the Coordinating Committee to consider: 

• Consider utilizing the MPO Projects Committee to review MPO work tasks such as 
Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TASA) projects and Transportation Systems Management 
and Operations (TSMO) projects when these items fall outside of the regular MPO meeting 
schedule. 

• Consider scheduling an August meeting each year on an as-needed basis for the Coordinating 
Committee to consider end-of-fiscal-year items such as amendments to the Transportation 
Improvement Program. 

• Consider the implementation of the Strategic Plan to be complete. The Committee further 
recommends that any remaining action items or outstanding priorities be addressed through the 
development of the annual MPO Work Plan, ensuring that these tasks are incorporated into the 
MPO’s ongoing planning and programming framework. 

 
The Technical Committee took action to recommend that the November meetings be held as a joint 
meeting between the Projects, Technical, and Coordinating Committees at the scheduled date and 
time of the Coordinating Committee meeting – Tuesday, November 25, 2025 at 6:00 PM. 
 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 13 of 18 
CCMPO Strategic Plan 2023: https://www.crcog.net/ccmpo-strategic-plan 
 
Attachments: 

• CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation Chart 
• CCMPO Four-Year Staggered Appointment Schedule 

 
The Coordinating Committee should consider holding a joint meeting with the Projects and 
Technical Committees at its Tuesday, November 25, 2025 meeting at 6:00 PM in the COG 
Forum Room. 
 
 Presented by: Marcella Hoffman, CRPA 
   
 Action: Hold a joint meeting in November with the Projects and Technical 

Committees.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

https://www.crcog.net/ccmpo-strategic-plan


CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation – Where We Are Today 
 

1 
As of July 2025 

Objective Actions Completed Partial/Ongoing Not Completed 

1.1 Ensure 
equitability in all 
Centre County 
regions and to all 
stakeholders 
through the most 
appropriate 
governance 
structure 
(including 
appropriate 
representation, 
engagement, and 
coordination). 

Analyze alternative governance 
models consistent with 
CCMPO’s strategic priorities for 
transportation, community 
representation, and stakeholder 
engagement, and adopt the 
most appropriate model.  

 

This analysis was 
completed during the 
2023 bylaw updates; 
however, some of the 
proposals, such as the 
change to Technical 
Committee 
membership, were not 
adopted. 

 

Rotate municipal representation 
of the Coordinating Committee. 
Encourage new municipalities to 
represent planning regions 
through the reappointment 
process. 

This began with the 
2023 reappointment 
process and will 
continue with the 2025 
reappointment process. 

  

Explore the option of extending 
terms to four years for equitable 
coverage. Ensure that alternates 
are prepared to serve.  

Bylaws were updated in 
2023 to extend terms to 
four years. This will be 
implemented in 2025 to 
begin the four-year 
alternating terms. 

  

Perform regular analyses and 
reporting of TIP allocations 
between outlying municipalities 
and the Centre Region.  

 

This has been 
completed with the 
current TIP. Regular 
analyses and reporting 
of TIP allocations will be 
ongoing. 

 



CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation – Where We Are Today 
 

2 
As of July 2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 Establish 
effective, 
complementary 
roles for the 
Coordinating 
Committee and 
Technical 
Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Clearly define the two 
committees’ primary focus 
areas through updated charters 
Technical Committee: 
Transportation-planning focus; 
Coordinating Committee: 
Transportation policy focus. 

 

This was clearly defined 
in 2023; however, this 
has not been put into 
practice for the 
Technical Committee. 
Should the MPO revisit 
this in 2026? 

 

Leverage the specific expertise 
of Technical Committee 
members through 
subcommittees on standing 
issues (e.g., safety, active 
transportation, project 
development, grants) and ad 
hoc subcommittees for 
emergent issues 

This has been utilized.    

Establish a “consent agenda” 
approach to streamline the 
acceptance of Technical 
Committee proceedings in 
Coordinating Committee 
meetings as a near-term action 
item. 

This has been utilized.   

Hold joint Coordinating-
Technical Committee meetings 
annually (or every other year) to 
enhance coordination and 
communication. 

 

Staff plans to 
implement this with the 
November 2025 
meetings. 

 



CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation – Where We Are Today 
 

3 
As of July 2025 

 
 
 
 
(continued) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 Establish 
effective, 
complementary 
roles for the 
Coordinating 
Committee and 
Technical 
Committee. 
 
 
 

Revise member terms beginning 
with the appointments for 2024. 

This has been utilized. 
The appointment 
schedule that begins in 
2026 will implement the 
staggered schedule. 

  

Revise the CCMPO Technical 
Committee composition and 
voting structure to include a 
“core group” of six voting 
members, with four to six 
“subject matter experts” who 
would be rotated out on a 
biennial basis, in synch with the 
adoption of the biennial work 
program.  

  
This failed to pass 
in 2023 with the 
Bylaw updates. 

Revise the CCMPO Bylaws to 
incorporate needed structural 
changes to the Technical 
Committee, and changes in 
member terms to the 
Coordinating Committee. 

 

The Technical and 
Coordinating 
Committee member 
terms have been 
revised; however, the 
structural changes to 
the Technical 
Committee have not yet 
been implemented. 

 



CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation – Where We Are Today 
 

4 
As of July 2025 

2.1 Ensure 
adequate staff 
coverage to meet 
the projected 
demands of 
CCMPO’s  
transportation-
planning priorities 
and opportunities 
(including 
available grants).  

Develop an appropriate model 
for total staff complement and 
focus areas (e.g., generalist vs. 
specialist), including the budget 
implications of any increases 
(primary model). 

This was completed for 
the 2024 budget.   

Develop an alternative model for 
staff augmentation by 
consultant resources, based on 
the primary staffing model, 
budget implications, and 
implementation timetable 
(alternative model). 

This was completed for 
the 2024 budget.   

Implement the primary, 
alternative, or hybrid model (at 
varied levels of hiring). 

This was completed for 
the 2024 budget.   

Consider the recommended 
staffing changes as part of the 
CY 2024 budget process 

The primary model and 
the alternative model 
(consulting support) 
were recommended 
and adopted for the 
staffing changes as part 
of the CY 2024 Budget. 

  



CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation – Where We Are Today 
 

5 
As of July 2025 

2.2 Enhance 
committee 
member 
onboarding and 
engagement. 

Develop an effective orientation 
program addressing the 
CCMPO’s responsibilities, 
expectations of committee 
members, and guidelines for 
representing the entire 
organization, as well as a given 
municipality. 

This was completed 
through MPO 101 
orientation. 

  

Encourage peer-to-peer 
mentoring to accelerate a 
committee member’s 
productivity in the role, with 
support from current or former 
committee members. 

 

This has been utilized 
but is ongoing with the 
MPO 101 orientation 
session and staff 
sharing this information 
at various meetings. 

 

Strengthen Coordinating 
Committee interaction and 
engagement, with emphasis on 
in-person meetings (except for 
special circumstances or non-
voting member participation)  

 

This has been utilized 
as the majority of 
Coordinating 
Committee members 
attend meetings in 
person. 

 

Develop a member work 
program to be shared at the first 
meeting of 2024. 

This has been utilized.   



CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation – Where We Are Today 
 

6 
As of July 2025 

2.3 Integrate 
federal 
requirements for 
transportation 
performance 
management with 
enhanced 
solicitation of local 
communities in 
project selection 
and prioritization. 

Preview a revised priority 
identification process for the 
development of the 2025- 2028 
TIP. 

  

This was not 
completed for the 
2025-2028 TIP. 
Staff plans to use 
the prioritization 
process during the 
2027-2030 TIP. 

3.1 Enhance 
equitability to 
regional 
stakeholders by 
providing 
appropriate 
representation in 
planning and 
decision making. 

Engage the economic 
development business 
community and other civic 
groups to obtain diverse 
perspectives on regional 
transportation planning 
priorities. 

 

This is ongoing but was 
completed in 2024 and 
2025 with the 
stakeholder outreach 
sessions of the LRTP 
2055 Update. MPO staff 
will continue to look for 
opportunities to engage 
these communities. 

 

3.2 Enhance 
decision-making 
through increased 
engagement of 
diversified 
stakeholders. 

Hold an annual event to engage 
all communities and 
stakeholders, ensuring 
appropriate representation and 
clear messaging.  

 

This is in process. The 
MPO is working towards 
a grant workshop to be 
held at the end of 2025 
or early 2026. 

 

Ensure that ongoing 
communication with all 
communities is clear and 
transparent. 

 This is ongoing.  



CCMPO Strategic Plan Implementation – Where We Are Today 
 

7 
As of July 2025 

3.3 Strengthen the 
bond between 
municipalities and 
the CCMPO 
through planned 
engagement, 
deliberate 
contacts, and 
frequent 
communication. 

Consider changes in meeting 
venue for fall 2023 meetings.    

This has not yet 
been completed 
but will be 
discussed at an 
upcoming MPO 
meeting. 

Rotate Technical and 
Coordinating Committee 
meeting locations. 

  This has not yet 
been completed. 

 



CCMPO Four-Year Staggered Appointment Schedule 

 

Tier 1 – Centre Region Tier 2 – Agency Partners Tier 3 – Outlying 
Municipalities + County 

Reappointment letters will be 
sent in November 2025 for a 

four-year term beginning 
January 2026 and ending in 

2029. 

Reappointment letters will be 
sent in November 2026 for a 

four-year term, beginning 
January 2027 and ending in 

2030. 

Reappointment letters will 
be sent in November 2027 

for a four-year term, 
beginning January 2028 and 

ending in 2031. 
• College Township 
• Ferguson Township 
• Halfmoon Township 
• Harris Township 
• Patton Township 
• State College Borough 

• CATA 
• CRPC 
• PennDOT District 2-0 
• PennDOT Central Office 
• Penn State University  
• FHWA 
• FTA 

• Centre County (2) 
• Lower Bald Eagle 
• Moshannon 
• Mountaintop 
• Nittany Valley 
• Penns Valley 
• Upper Bald Eagle 

 
*non-voting members 



CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 14 of 18 
ITEM 15 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
1. Future Meeting Dates 

a.  Technical Committee: Wednesday, November 12, 2025, 9:30 a.m. 
Hybrid meeting 
Zoom and in-person at the Centre Region COG Building 

 State College Area Connector Update 
 SS4A Grant Update 
 Projects Committee Update   
 Priorities for 2025 – 2027 UPWP Year Two Supplemental Studies 
 Priorities for 2027 – 2030 Transportation Improvement Program 

b. Coordinating Committee: Tuesday, November 25, 2025, 6:00 p.m. 
Hybrid meeting 
Zoom and in-person at the Centre Region COG Building 

 State College Area Connector Update 
 SS4A Grant Update 
 Projects Committee Update   
 Priorities for 2025 – 2027 UPWP Year Two Supplemental Studies 
 Priorities for 2027 – 2030 Transportation Improvement Program 

2. The CCMPO’s Procedures for Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) Revisions allow project 
sponsors (typically PennDOT and CATA) to make administrative modifications that change funding 
on the TIP without formal approval by the Coordinating Committee. The Procedures specify that 
the administrative modifications be reported to the CCMPO for information purposes. Attachment 
15.2 is the Fiscal Constraint Chart that lists administrative modifications to the 2023-2026 TIP that 
were completed since the June CCMPO meetings.  

 
3. Effective with the CCMPO Coordinating Committee meeting to be held Tuesday, February 27, 

2024, MPO members and the public should be aware that all CCMPO meetings recorded by C-NET 
for rebroadcast will feature closed captioning. MPO staff recently elected to have this additional 
C-NET service to enhance the accessibility and transparency of meetings at an inexpensive cost. It 
is important to note that closed captioning will not be available on a live stream basis – this 
feature can only be made available for meeting re-broadcasts. It should be compatible with most 
major streaming devices. 
 

4. Major CCMPO plans have been updated to share contact information for MPO staff designated to 
coordinate efforts and compliance in addressing accessibility matters including ADA complaints. 
This assures our compliance with ADA section 504, and responds to a request forwarded by 
PennDOT in July 2023. 
 

5. MPO staff completed and posted the required Annual Listing of Obligated Projects for Federal 
Fiscal Year (FFY) 2024 highway, bridge, and transit projects.  This most recent list can be accessed 
on the MPO website at:  https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-
BAC6A6336348%7D/uploads/CCMPO_FFY_2024_Obligation_Report.pdf 

https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-
https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-


CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 15 of 18 
6. On June 25, 2025 MPO staff provided Penn Township with a letter of support for its application to 

the Multimodal Transportation Fund (MTF) through the Department of Community and Economic 
Development’s Commonwealth Financing Authority. The Township seeks MTF funding to 
rehabilitate a portion of Long Lane. Letter is Attachment 15.6. 
 

7. On June 26, 2025 MPO staff provided Worth Township with a letter of support for its application to 
the Multimodal Transportation Fund (MTF) through the Department of Community and Economic 
Development’s Commonwealth Financing Authority. The Township seeks MTF funding to 
reconstruct a portion of East Mountain Road. Letter is Attachment 15.8. 
 

8. On July 18, 2025 MPO staff provided Taylor Township with a letter of support for its application to 
the Multimodal Transportation Fund (MTF) through the Department of Community and Economic 
Development’s Commonwealth Financing Authority. The Township seeks MTF funding to 
reconstruction a portion of South Mountain Road. Letter is Attachment 15.9. 

 
9. On August 7, 2025 Happy Valley Adventure Bureau released their Gravel Adventure Field Guide. 

The guide can be picked up at their office at 204 West Beaver Avenue, State College, PA or online 
at https://happyvalley.com/happy-valley-pennsylvania-gravel-adventure-field-guide . 

 
10. On August 7, 2025 the Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) funding for the Centred on Safety 

Action Plan was obligated. Michael Baker International, Inc. was selected to perform the work, but 
the final contract is in development. Staff is working on details of the project scope with the 
consultant to move the project forward. 

 
11. On August 8, 2025, the CCMPO executed a work order with Michael Baker International, Inc. for 

consultant assistance with the PA-150 (Benner Pike) Land Inventory and Corridor Study. This work 
order – in the amount of $150,000 – kicks off a project from the current Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP), with the goal of assessing the current and potential future conditions of the 
Benner Pike corridor and propose targeted short- and long-term improvement strategies to 
address the continued impact of development along the corridor. It is anticipated that this project 
will be completed no later than June 30, 2026. 

 
12. On August 11, 2025, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) published the National Electric 

Vehicle Infrastructure (NEVI) Program Interim Final Guidance on the NEVI webpage. Key points 
from the guidance include: 

• States must submit a State EV Infrastructure Development Plan within 30 days. 

• Once a state determines—and FHWA certifies—that its designated Alternative Fuel Corridors 
are fully built out for electric vehicles, NEVI funds may be used for EV charging infrastructure 
on any public road or other publicly accessible location. 

The PennDOT NEVI team stated they will work diligently to get a new NEVI State Plan approved and 
receive full build-out certification so the community phase can begin. This effort aligns with the EV 
Infrastructure Readiness Priority Uses and Locations Report CCMPO submitted to PennDOT in 
July 2025. 
 

13. On August 12, 2025 the CCMPO executed a work order with Michael Baker International, Inc. for 
consulting assistance with the FY 2026 Bridge Investment Program (BIP) grant application. 
However, it was discovered that the BIP program was archived late last year and was not reposted 

https://happyvalley.com/happy-valley-pennsylvania-gravel-adventure-field-guide
https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-BAC6A6336348%7D/uploads/EV_Infrastructure_Readiness_Priority_uses_and_locations_-_CCMPO.pdf
https://www.crcog.net/vertical/Sites/%7B6AD7E2DC-ECE4-41CD-B8E1-BAC6A6336348%7D/uploads/EV_Infrastructure_Readiness_Priority_uses_and_locations_-_CCMPO.pdf


CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 16 of 18 
for the FY 2026 round. Staff have determined based on information from the Large BIP grant 
program, that U.S. DOT is likely making edits to the Notice of Funding Opportunity to be in line with 
the Trump Administration’s policies and priorities. Staff expects the BIP program to reopen in 
September, ahead of the November 1, 2026 deadline. Work on the BIP application has been 
paused until more information can be learned. 
 

14. In the coming days, the CCMPO is also expected to execute a work order with Michael Baker 
International, Inc. for consultant assistance with the Passenger Rail Access Study.  This work 
order – in the amount of $60,000 – will kick off a project from the current Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP), with the goal of assessing local demand for passenger rail access, identifying 
the most supportable and sustainable options to improve this access, and evaluating the 
willingness and ability of project partners to provide this access, supported by an implementation 
plan and cost estimates.  It is also anticipated that this project will be completed no later than 
June 30, 2026. 
 

15. In the coming days CCMPO staff will be submitting a response letter to the request for information 
Advancing a Surface Transportation Proposal That Focuses on America's Most Fundamental 
Infrastructure Needs [Docket No. DOT-OST-2025-0468]. The deadline has been extended to 
September 9, 2025.  Link: https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/07/21/2025-
13663/advancing-a-surface-transportation-proposal-that-focuses-on-americas-most-
fundamental-infrastructure . Letter is Attachment 15.17. 
 

16. On August 20, 2025, The Shapiro Administration announced Altoona Blair County Development 
Corporation (Blair, Cambria, Centre, and Clearfield counties) — $48,600 for an economic impact 
study of the Central Allegheny Highlands ATV Trail System. This will supplement the work that is 
currently underway for the Central Allegheny Highlands ATV Study.   

17. September 5, 2025 was the deadline for the TASA draft applications. The Guidance for the 2025 
TASA is posted here: https://www.pa.gov/agencies/penndot/research-planning-and-
innovation/transportation-alternatives-set-aside-program. Final applications due October 31, 
2025. 
 

18. The Centre County Liquid Fuels Program 2026 is now accepting applications. Notifications were 
sent to all Centre County municipalities on August 22, 2025. The deadline for municipalities to 
submit requests is October 17, 2025, by 5:00 PM, either to the Centre County Planning Office: 

Centre County Planning and Community Development Office 
Attn: Liquid Fuels Applications 
420 Holmes Street, Suite 340 
Bellefonte, PA 16823  
or by email at CountyTransportation@centrecountypa.gov. 

The 2026 Centre County Liquid Fuels Application is Attachment 15.20. 
 

19. On November 6, 2025 DCNR will host 2025 Community Conservation Partnerships Program 
Statewide Annual Grant Workshop. This is a virtual workshop and registration can be found here. 
https://eventsreg.dcnr.pa.gov/register/CreateSingle/14107  
 

20. Fall is a great time to get on your bike or take a bike class. Please go to our bike calendar to learn 
more. Link: https://www.crcog.net/bikeevents  
 

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/07/21/2025-13663/advancing-a-surface-transportation-proposal-that-focuses-on-americas-most-fundamental-infrastructure
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/07/21/2025-13663/advancing-a-surface-transportation-proposal-that-focuses-on-americas-most-fundamental-infrastructure
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2025/07/21/2025-13663/advancing-a-surface-transportation-proposal-that-focuses-on-americas-most-fundamental-infrastructure
https://www.pa.gov/agencies/penndot/research-planning-and-innovation/transportation-alternatives-set-aside-program
https://www.pa.gov/agencies/penndot/research-planning-and-innovation/transportation-alternatives-set-aside-program
mailto:CountyTransportation@centrecountypa.gov
https://eventsreg.dcnr.pa.gov/register/CreateSingle/14107
https://www.crcog.net/bikeevents


CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 17 of 18 
21. PROTECT funds for the Centre County Resilient Routes Study are in progress to be obligated to 

begin work on the study. The study will be posted for bids in the near future. The CCMPO is 
intended to be directly involved with this study.  
 

22. PennDOT Customer Care Center is a webpage people can use to express their concerns regarding 
highway and bridge issues. Link: CCC Home Page 
 

23. PA.gov Launches a New Search Tool to Streamline Access to Government Funding Opportunities. 
Link:  https://pa.gov/en/grants.html  
 

24. PennDOT’s Local Technical Assistance Program (LTAP) provides training courses free of charge, 
sponsored by the SEDA-COG MPO – link:  

http://seda-cog.org/departments/transportation/local-technical-assistance-program/ 
 
25. US DOT, FHWA and FTA continue to provide updates on programs available under the Bipartisan 

Infrastructure Law. Members should check for new updates regularly and consider signing up for 
email alerts. Notable sites are included in the table below:  

Description Site 

BIL overview and assistance site https://billaunchpad.com/  
DOT Discretionary Grants 
Dashboard 

DOT Discretionary Grants Dashboard | US Department of 
Transportation 

FHWA Fact Sheets https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-
law/fact_sheets.cfm 

FHWA Guidance and Regulations  https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-
law/guidance.cfm 

US DOT BIL Website https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-
law 

FTA BIL Website https://www.transit.dot.gov/BIL 
FHWA Policy of Using BIL 
Resources to Build a Better 
America 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-
law/building_a_better_america-policy_framework.cfm 

FHWA Newsroom https://highways.dot.gov/newsroom 

BIL Overview Presentation  https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-
law/docs/bil_overview_20211122.pdf 

Anticipated schedule for upcoming 
USDOT BIL discretionary funding 
programs: 

https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-
law/upcoming-notice-funding-opportunity-announcements-
2022 

Current USDOT NOFOs Site 

Bridge Investment Program https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bridge/bip/index.cfm 

Low-Carbon Transportation 
Materials Grants https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/lowcarbon/  

Promoting Resilient Operations for 
Transformative, Efficient, and Cost-
Saving Transportation (PROTECT) 

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/protect/discretiona
ry/  

 

https://customercare.penndot.pa.gov/eCCC/eCCC.nsf
https://pa.gov/en/grants.html
http://seda-cog.org/departments/transportation/local-technical-assistance-program/
https://billaunchpad.com/
https://www.transportation.gov/grants/dashboard
https://www.transportation.gov/grants/dashboard
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/fact_sheets.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/fact_sheets.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/guidance.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/guidance.cfm
https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law
https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law
https://www.transit.dot.gov/BIL
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/building_a_better_america-policy_framework.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/building_a_better_america-policy_framework.cfm
https://highways.dot.gov/newsroom
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/docs/bil_overview_20211122.pdf
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/docs/bil_overview_20211122.pdf
https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/upcoming-notice-funding-opportunity-announcements-2022
https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/upcoming-notice-funding-opportunity-announcements-2022
https://www.transportation.gov/bipartisan-infrastructure-law/upcoming-notice-funding-opportunity-announcements-2022
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/lowcarbon/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/protect/discretionary/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/protect/discretionary/


CCMPO Coordinating Committee Agenda 
September 17, 2025 

Page 18 of 18 
26. CCMPO staff contact information: 

Centre Regional Planning Agency  
Telephone:814-231-3050 | Fax:814-231-3083 
2643 Gateway Drive State College, PA 16801 

  Pam Adams, Director     padams@crcog.net  
  Jim Saylor, Principal Transportation Planner  jsaylor@crcog.net 
  Greg Kausch, Senior Transportation Planner  gkausch@crcog.net  
  Anne Messner, Senior Transportation Planner  amessner@crcog.net  
  Marcella Hoffman, Transportation Grants Specialist mhoffman@crcog.net 

  Gabby Lauder, Office Manager   glauder@crcog.net  
 
Centre County Planning & Community Development Office 
Telephone: 814-355-6791 | Fax: 814-355-8661 
420 Holmes Street – Willowbank Office Building Bellefonte, PA  16823 
  Ray Stolinas, Director    rjstolinas@centrecountypa.gov  
  Elizabeth Lose, Assistant Director  eatuck@centrecountypa.gov  
  Richa Rimal     rrimal@centrecountypa.gov  
 
On the web at www.ccmpo.net . Like and share the CCMPO’s Facebook page at 
https://www.facebook.com/centrecountyMPO/ . 

 

mailto:padams@crcog.net
mailto:jsaylor@crcog.net
mailto:gkausch@crcog.net
mailto:amessner@crcog.net
mailto:mhoffman@crcog.net
mailto:glauder@crcog.net
mailto:rjstolinas@centrecountypa.gov
mailto:eatuck@centrecountypa.gov
mailto:rrimal@centrecountypa.gov
http://www.ccmpo.net/
https://www.facebook.com/centrecountyMPO/

	AGENDA
	16. Adjourn
	ITEM 7
	Public Comment Period Summary, Public Comments and Responses
	ITEM 12
	Hybrid meeting
	Zoom and in-person at the Centre Region COG Building
	Hybrid meeting
	Zoom and in-person at the Centre Region COG Building

	Item 7.1 CCMPO FCC Amend TIP HSIP.pdf
	FCC1

	Item 9.1 Centre County Transporation Conformity Determination Report - 2055 LRTP.pdf
	May 2025
	Executive Summary
	5.0 Conclusion


